100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911-4799
www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

Fox Cities Transit Commission

Tuesday, July 22, 2025 2:50 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor
1. Call meeting to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll call of membership
4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting
25-0867 Approval of minutes from previous meeting

Attachments: MeetingMinutes 24-June-2025.pdf

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

25-0869 Public Participation on Agenda ltems
6. Action Iltems

25-0871 Approval of Payments

Attachments: June 2025 Payments.pdf

25-0873 Authorization to Execute Cooperative Agreement between Valley Transit,
WisDOT, and ECWRPC

Attachments: Appleton Coop Agreement Final 11July25.pdf

7. Information Iltems

25-0874 Financial Report

Attachments: June 2025 Income Statement.pdf

25-0875 Ridership Report

Attachments: FCTC Monthly FR - June 2025.pdf
FCTC Monthly DR - June 2025.pdf

City of Appleton Page 1 Printed on 7/18/2025


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26215
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7dcfb832-0415-4e8f-a6bc-b2d2f9940788.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26217
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26219
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c84531bb-fb8f-49c0-ba16-274a79619045.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26221
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf223ff4-3b30-4cd3-9448-b1a8f428325d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26222
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=96087129-85c4-42b0-9566-c3c9f0df11a6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26223
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=888fe50c-2134-4ac0-b89c-03b267f2095b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d11a011-442f-4d18-8d26-0613b8416166.pdf

Fox Cities Transit Commission Meeting Agenda - Final-revised July 22, 2025

25-0876 2nd Quarter Key Performance Indicators

Attachments: Quarterly KPl - FR_ QTR2 2025.pdf
Quarterly KPI - DR QTR2 2025.pdf

25-0877 Request for Future Agenda Items

8. Next Meeting Date & Time
- August 12, 2025, 2:50 PM - Cancelled
- August 26, 2025, 2:50 PM

9. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this
meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request
and if Feasible.

City of Appleton Page 2 Printed on 7/18/2025


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26224
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=60e96b27-3110-4b55-a7ea-0a3433f74e4a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=896c2c41-2368-45dc-91f2-6c2e15507eb2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26225

100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, Wl 54911-4799
www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Fox Cities Transit Commission

Tuesday, June 24, 2025 2:50 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor

1. Call meeting to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

Present: 10 - Kasimor, Dexter, Chairperson Dearborn, Wurdinger, Patza, Torrance,
Brown, Holzschuh, Thao and Meltzer

Excused: 2- VandeHey and Smith
4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

25-0717 Approval of minutes from previous meeting

Attachments: MeetingMinutes 27-May-2025.pdf

Commissioner Wurdinger moved, seconded by Commissioner Meltzer, that the
Minutes be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

25-0718 Public Participation on Agenda ltems

No public participation on agenda items.
6. Action Items

25-0719 Approval of Payments

Attachments: May 2025 Payments.pdf

Commissioner Torrance moved, seconded by Commissioner Meltzer, that the
payments be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

City of Appleton Page 1


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26065
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0af53ff1-7acb-4232-97da-68739f7ad409.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26066
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26067
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=db621ce8-4371-4549-b5b5-87254f661cec.pdf

Fox Cities Transit Commission Meeting Minutes - Final June 24, 2025

25-0720 Award Recommendation for Full Fleet CAD/AVL System Hardware
Upgrade and Software Subscription Extension
Attachments: Award Recommendation Doc_GMV Hardware Upgrade & Software
Extension.pdf
Commissioner Meltzer moved, seconded by Commissioner Patza, that the
award for System Hardware Upgrade and Software Extension be
recommended for approval. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.
7. Information Items
25-0731 Financial Report
Attachments: May 2025 Income Statement.pdf
The Financial Report was presented.
25-0732 Ridership Report
Attachments: May 2025 Ridership.pdf
The Ridership Report was presented.
25-0733 Fox Cities Transit Commission agenda discussion
The FCTC agenda was discussed.
25-0734 Request for Future Agenda Items

Future agenda items were requested.

8. Next Meeting Dates & Times
- July 8, 2025, 2:50PM - Cancelled
- July 22, 2025, 2:50PM

9. Adjournment

A motion was made by Commissioner Meltzer, seconded by Commissioner
Torrance, that this meeting was adjourned. The motion carried unanimously.

City of Appleton

Page 2


https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26068
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef70d609-ff74-4660-88eb-acc16a4bf1e3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26079
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45101f99-4984-4807-bae0-c375d381ab84.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26080
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7389400-9920-4d82-9f00-ad32635a9d1a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26081
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26082

er erp solution

City of Appleton - _"”é ‘-;fylj(unls

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

YEAR/PERIOD: 2025/6 TO 2025/6

ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT YEAR/PR TYP S CHECK RUN CHECK DESCRIPTION
58071000 VT 5307 Admin
58071000 620100 Training/Conferences
002348 CASA HISPANA INC. 148075 0 2025 6 INV P 75.00 061825 570400 Latino Fest booth
999990 PAYPAL *TRANSITVALLE 148798 0 2025 6 INV P -395.00 PCARD Refund of Paypal co
ACCOUNT TOTAL -320.00
58071000 620500 Employee Recruitment
002694 RNS COMMUNICATIONS I 147236 0 2025 6 INV P 600.00 061125 570343 Employee recruitmen
002824 SINCLAIR BROADCAST 148663 250192 2025 6 INV P 6,255.00 070225 570663 Employment Advertis
ACCOUNT TOTAL 6,855.00
58071000 630100 office Supplies
002446 A&S IDENTITY SPECIAL 148622 0 2025 6 INV P 329.50 070225 570583 office supplies
999990 QUILL CORPORATION 148762 0 2025 6 INV P 269.21 pcard office Supplies
ACCOUNT TOTAL 598.71
58071000 630200 Subscriptions
001517 GANNETT WISCONSIN 148793 0 2025 6 INV P 53.99 pcard Post Crescent Subsc
ACCOUNT TOTAL 53.99
58071000 632001 City Copy Charges
001164 RICOH USA, INC. 147488 0 2025 6 INV P 491.49 061125 570341 copier cCharges
001164 RICOH USA, INC. 147497 0 2025 6 INV P 586.48 061125 570341 copier Charges
001164 RICOH USA, INC. 148597 0 2025 6 INV P 485.29 062525 570555 Copier charges
1,563.26
ACCOUNT TOTAL 1,563.26
58071000 632002 outside Printing
002297 PRINTSOURCE PLUS 148623 0 2025 6 INV P 313.72 070225 570656 safety cards
ACCOUNT TOTAL 313.72
58071000 632700 Miscellaneous Equipment
001983 AMAZON 148759 0 2025 6 INV P 463.77 pcard office Equipment
001983 AMAZON 148794 0 2025 6 INV P 138.90 PCARD office Equipment
602.67
ACCOUNT TOTAL 602.67
58071000 640300 Bank Service Fees
000814 LOOMIS ARMORED US, L 147499 0 2025 6 INV P 243.81 061825 570438 JUNE ARMORED CAR SE
Report generated: 07/16/2025 11:59 Page 1
User: Stoh1kJ

Program ID: apinvgla



City of Appleton == -.,’&; e m!;'p'f

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

YEAR/PERIOD: 2025/6 TO 2025/6

ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT YEAR/PR TYP CHECK RUN CHECK DESCRIPTION
ACCOUNT TOTAL 243.81
58071000 640800 Contractor Fees
001771 RED SHOES PR, INC. 147238 0 2025 6 INV P 4,987.50 061125 570340 May Marketing effor
ACCOUNT TOTAL 4,987.50
58071000 641200 Advertising
001771 RED SHOES PR, INC. 147239 0 2025 6 INV P 7,000.00 061125 570340 Digital Advertising
ACCOUNT TOTAL 7,000.00
58071000 641301 Electric
001575 WE ENERGIES 147233 0 2025 6 INV P 4,886.21 061125 570373 May Gas & Electric
ACCOUNT TOTAL 4,886.21
58071000 641302 Gas
001575 WE ENERGIES 147233 0 2025 6 INV P 360.13 061125 570373 May Gas & Electric
ACCOUNT TOTAL 360.13
58071000 641800 Equip Repairs & Maint
000620 HEARTLAND BUSINESS S 147234 0 2025 6 INV P 633.75 061125 570294 IT - switch work
000620 HEARTLAND BUSINESS S 147235 0 2025 6 INV P 1,865.00 061125 570294 IT - switch work
2,498.75
ACCOUNT TOTAL 2,498.75
58071000 642400 Software Support
002593 TRANSTRACK 148639 0 2025 6 INV P 29,759.50 070225 570672 software maintenanc
999990 zooM.COM 888-799-966 148795 0 2025 6 INV P 2,809.00 PCARD Teleconference Annu
ACCOUNT TOTAL 32,568.50
58071000 643000 Health Services
001588 THEDACARE, INC. 148626 0 2025 6 INV P 87.55 070225 570670 DOT random drug tes
ACCOUNT TOTAL 87.55
58071000 659900 other Contracts/obligation
002164 CLIFTON LARSON 147583 0 2025 6 INV P 1,203.94 061825 570405 INV #L251369646 MAY
ACCOUNT TOTAL 1,203.94
ORG 58071000 TOTAL 63,503.74
58072000 VT 5307 vehicle Maintenance
58072000 630901 Shop Supplies
000866 MENARDS 148800 0 2025 6 INV P 46.97 PCARD Shop Supplies
Report generated: 07/16/2025 11:59 Page 2

User: stoh1kJ
Program ID: apinvgla



City of Appleton

er erp solution

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

YEAR/PERIOD: 2025/6 TO 2025/6

ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT YEAR/PR TYP CHECK RUN CHECK DESCRIPTION
ACCOUNT TOTAL 46.97
58072000 632200 Gas Purchases
000763 KWIK TRIP, INC 147242 0 2025 6 INV P 388.04 061125 570306 staff vehicle fuel
ACCOUNT TOTAL 388.04
58072000 632601 Repair Parts
000006 ABC BUS, INC. 147237 0 2025 6 INV P 652.74 061125 570244 pParts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 147220 0 2025 6 INV P 1,138.17 061125 570326 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 147222 0 2025 6 INV P 516.78 061125 570326 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 147223 0 2025 6 INV P 13,088.42 061125 570326 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148071 0 2025 6 INV P 505.36 061825 570451 pParts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148072 0 2025 6 INV P 1,094.64 061825 570451 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148073 0 2025 6 INV P 14,033.09 061825 570451 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148631 0 2025 6 INV P 505.36 070225 570648 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148632 0 2025 6 CRM P -206.76 070225 570648 Credit for returned
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148633 0 2025 6 INV P 496.72 070225 570648 Parts
000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 148637 0 2025 6 INV P 344.61 070225 570648 Parts
31,516.39
000569 GILLIG LLC 147229 0 2025 6 INV P 2,858.40 061125 570287 Parts
001595 JX TRUCK/PETERBILT 147226 0 2025 6 INV P 2,731.79 061125 570301 Parts
001595 JX TRUCK/PETERBILT 147228 0 2025 6 INV P 1,573.28 061125 570301 pParts
4,305.07|
999990 GEIB INDUSTRIES INC 148799 0 2025 6 INV P 140.73 PCARD Parts
ACCOUNT TOTAL 39,473.33
58072000 641700 vehicle Repairs & Maint
000013 ACCURATE SUSPENSION 148077 0 2025 6 INV P 5,003.60 061825 570381 Bus repairs
001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC. 148624 0 2025 6 INV P 1,153.41 070225 570639 vehicle repairs - t
ACCOUNT TOTAL 6,157.01
58072000 641800 Equip Repairs & Maint
001194 SAFETY-KLEEN 147245 0 2025 6 INV P 555.20 061125 570346 waste oil pick up
003291 ENERGITECH SERVICES, 147243 0 2025 6 INV P 255.00 061125 570273 underground Storage
003291 ENERGITECH SERVICES, 147244 0 2025 6 INV P 1,989.43 061125 570273 uUnderground Storage
2,244.43
ACCOUNT TOTAL 2,799.63
Report generated: 07/16/2025 11:59 Page 3

User: stoh1kJ
Program ID: apinvgla



er erp solution

City of Appleton - _"”é ‘-;fylj(unls

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

YEAR/PERIOD: 2025/6 TO 2025/6

ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT YEAR/PR TYP S CHECK RUN CHECK  DESCRIPTION
58072000 643000 Health Services
001588 THEDACARE, INC. 148628 0 2025 6 INV P 87.55 070225 570670 DOT random drug tes
ACCOUNT TOTAL 87.55
ORG 58072000 TOTAL 48,952.53
58073000 VT 5307 Building Maintenance
58073000 630899 Other Landscape Supplies
002121 HONEYMOON ACRES GREE 147176 250226 2025 6 INV P 490.00 060425 570187 2025 Flower order,
ACCOUNT TOTAL 490.00
58073000 641600 Build Repairs & Maint
000446 FAITH TECHNOLOGIES, 148149 240850 2025 6 INV P 2,905.00 061825 570415 Access control card
ACCOUNT TOTAL 2,905.00
58073000 680100 1800 Land
001946 CITY OF APPLETON 148179 0 2025 6 INV P 150,000.00 062525 570511 Land purchase 222 N
ACCOUNT TOTAL 150,000.00
58073000 680300 Buildings
000446 FAITH TECHNOLOGIES, 148148 240782 2025 6 INV P 14,666.37 061825 570415 Access control syst
003239 IMEG 148078 0 2025 6 INV P 4,898.75 061825 570426 professional servic
ACCOUNT TOTAL 19,565.12
58073000 680300 1800 Buildings
001283 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM, 148170 230132 2025 6 INV P 608.00 061825 570472 Transit Center Mult
002524 EHLERS AND ASSOC 148147 230197 2025 6 INV P 1,381.25 061825 570412 Financial analysis
ACCOUNT TOTAL 1,989.25
ORG 58073000 TOTAL 174,949.37
58074000 VT 5307 Operations
58074000 632101 Uniforms
001396 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 148069 0 2025 6 INV P 73.92 061825 570482 uniforms
001396 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 148070 0 2025 6 INV P 73.92 061825 570482 uniforms
147.84
ACCOUNT TOTAL 147.84
58074000 632200 Gas Purchases
001608 GARROW OIL CORPORATI 148625 0 2025 6 INV P 16,169.20 070225 570617 #2 Clear Diesel fue
ACCOUNT TOTAL 16,169.20
Report generated: 07/16/2025 11:59 Page 4
User: Stoh1kJ

Program ID: apinvgla



() "
% munis
o . atylererp solution

City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

YEAR/PERIOD: 2025/6 TO 2025/6

ACCOUNT/VENDOR DOCUMENT YEAR/PR TYP CHECK RUN CHECK DESCRIPTION
58074000 632602 Tires
001926 GOODYEAR TIRE AND RU 148629 0 2025 6 INV P 148.97 070225 570620 Tire leasing progra
001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC. 148624 0 2025 6 INV P 865.36 070225 570639 vehicle repairs - t
003165 BRIDGESTONE 148654 230542 2025 6 INV P 2,010.66 070225 570598 Tire program
ACCOUNT TOTAL 3,024.99
58074000 632603 Lubricants
000615 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS 148074 0 2025 6 INV P 1,331.83 061825 570421 DEF
000615 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS 148630 0 2025 6 INV P 4,290.30 070225 570622 0i1 15w40
5,622.13
ACCOUNT TOTAL 5,622.13
58074000 640800 contractor Fees
002229 STAR PROTECTION AND 147232 0 2025 6 INV P 7,628.00 061125 570349 Security services M
ACCOUNT TOTAL 7,628.00
58074000 643000 Health Services
001588 THEDACARE, INC. 147230 0 2025 6 INV P 459.85 061125 570351 DOT random D&A test
001588 THEDACARE, INC. 147231 0 2025 6 INV P 71.40 061125 570351 DOT random D&A test
001588 THEDACARE, INC. 148627 0 2025 6 INV P 186.15 070225 570670 DOT physical and dr
717 .40
003122 ASCENSION MEDICAL GR 147240 0 2025 6 INV P 118.00 061125 570251 DOT random D&A test
ACCOUNT TOTAL 835.40
ORG 58074000 TOTAL 33,427.56

FUND 580 Valley Transit

*%* END OF REPORT - Generated by Kristin Stohl **

Report generated: 07/16/2025 11:59 Page 5
User: Stoh1K3J
Program ID: apinvgla



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR CONTINUING TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
FOR THE APPLETON (FOX CITIES), WISCONSIN METROPOLITAN PLANNING
AREA
between
STATE OF WISCONSIN, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
and the
EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
and the
APPLETON (FOX CITIES) METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION
and the
VALLEY TRANSIT

This Cooperative Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is made and
entered into between the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation (hereinafter
referred to as “WisDOT”), East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission
(hereinafter referred to as “ECWRPC”), the Appleton (Fox Cities) Metropolitan Planning
Organization (hereinafter referred to as “Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO” or “MPQO”) and Valley
Transit, the operator of publicly owned transit services (hereinafter referred to as “Transit
Operator”).

Recitals

WHEREAS, the Governor of Wisconsin has designated ECWRPC, as the Appleton (Fox
Cities) MPO, and also jointly designated with local communities through their authorized
representatives within the Appleton (Fox Cities) Urbanized Area, the MPO as the agency
to carry out metropolitan planning activities for the Appleton Urbanized Area (hereinafter
referred to as “Planning Area”); and

WHEREAS, various federal grants and incentive funds are available to WisDOT,
ECWRPC and the Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, and various state grants and incentive
funds are available to the MPO for carrying out metropolitan transportation planning
activities; and

WHEREAS, WisDOT is authorized by Wis. Stat. § 85.02 to direct, undertake and expend
state and federal funds for planning, promotion and protection activities for all
transportation modes; and

WHEREAS, metropolitan transportation planning activities come under the jurisdiction of
the U.S. Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as “USDOT”) Federal
Highway Administration (hereinafter referred to as “FHWA”) and Federal Transit
Administration (hereinafter referred to as “FTA”) and are subject to the metropolitan
planning requirements of 23 U.S.C. 8 134, 49 U.S.C § 5303 of the Federal Transit Act
and implementing regulations at 23 C.F.R. Part 450; and

WHEREAS, the Transit Operator provides mass transportation services within the
Appleton (Fox Cities) Metropolitan Planning Area; and



WHEREAS, ECWRPC, the Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, WisDOT and USDOT in
consultation with the appropriate transportation providers enter into an annual Unified
Planning Work Program (hereinafter referred to as the “Planning Work Program") as
detailed in Article 3 Scope of Work of this agreement; and

WHEREAS, Metropolitan Planning Area boundaries for purposes of the federal planning

provisions have been determined by a separate agreement between the Appleton (Fox
Cities) MPO and the Governor;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises, and of their mutual and
dependent needs, the parties hereto contract and agree as follows:

Article 1: Statement of Purpose

WisDOT, ECWRPC the Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, in cooperation with the Transit
Operator, shall undertake a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation
planning and programming process for the Metropolitan Planning Area in accordance with
federal, state and local goals for metropolitan planning, the provisions of 23 U.S.C. § 134,
49 U.S.C. § 5303 and 23 C.F.R. Part 450, and in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement.

The MPO will:

1. Ensure the voting membership of the MPO policy body consists of:

a. local elected officials;

b. officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes
of transportation in the metropolitan area, including representation
by providers of public transportation; and
I. the official described in paragraph b shall have responsibilities,

actions, duties, voting rights and any other authority
commensurate with other officials described.

c. appropriate State officials.

2. Prepare and update a Congestion Management Process (“CMP”) for the
Planning Area which shall conform to all applicable federal requirements.

3. Engage in a Federally sponsored re-certification review every four (4) years
per the most recent federal regulations.

4. Ensure that the Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO would be in air quality
nonattainment and maintenance areas, the MPO would:

a. Assess the conformity of the Metropolitan Planning Area long-range
transportation plan and Transportation Improvement Plan (“TIP”) with
the Wisconsin State Implementation Plan for air quality management;
and



b. Conduct such additional air quality related transportation planning and
analyses as shall be determined under a separate Memorandum of
Agreement between the Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources, WisDOT, United States
Environmental Protection Agency, FHWA and FTA implementing Clean
Air Act section 176(c)(4)(E) requirements for a state conformity
implementation plan.

Article 2: Program Responsibilities

A. Overall Responsibilities for All Programs

1. ECWRPC, Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, the Transit Operator and WisDOT
will collaborate and cooperatively work together on the following planning and
programming requirements (23 C.F.R. Part 450 and FTA Circular 4702.1B) as
outlined below which will include:

a. Ensuring opportunities for the early and continuing involvement of the MPO,
Transit Operator, WisDOT, local governmental units and general public in the
review and evaluation of all MPO and state transportation plans and
programs.

b. As may be necessary, meet with local elected officials and officials of major
modes or system of transportation, e.g., transit, major airports, maritime ports
and rail operators, to ensure that the needs and concerns of the state of
Wisconsin with respect to transportation planning are being effectively met in
the ongoing operations of the MPO.

2. The MPO shall be responsible for and shall be the lead agency in conducting
the following transportation planning and programming activities as outlined
below:

a. Developing and implementing a Public Participation Process that provides
a forum for cooperative transportation planning and decision-making and
ensures reasonable opportunities for early and continuing involvement of
individuals, affected public agencies, representatives of public
transportation employees, public ports, freight shippers, providers of
freight transportation services, private providers of transportation
(including intercity bus operators and employer-based commuting
programs, such as carpool programs, vanpool programs, transit benefit
programs, parking cash-out programs, shuttle programs or telework
programs), representatives of users of public transportation,
representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation
facilities, representatives of disabled persons and other interested parties
in the review and evaluation of all transportation plans and programs, the



latter to include special outreach efforts to those traditionally underserved
by transportation systems.

b. Making data, assumptions, criteria, methodology and analyses available to
WisDOT and other participants in a timely manner.

c. Coordinating with the Transit Operator to address the transit needs as part
of the planning process.

d. Considering and implementing WisDOT transportation plans and planning
guidance to the fullest extent consistent within local and regional goals.

3. WisDOT shall be responsible and shall be the lead agency in conducting the
following transportation planning and programming activities:

a. Ensuring the MPO is informed of and compliant with Federal or State
statutes, policies, regulations and guidelines, which may impact
programming activities and contractual arrangements.

b. Providing technical support and data and information collected or
maintained by WisDOT that is pertinent to the transportation planning
work to be performed by the MPO under this Agreement.

c. Coordinating and reconciling MPO transportation plans and programs with
statewide plans and programs as necessary to ensure connectivity within
transportation systems, in cooperation with the MPO.

d. Providing information relative to the proposed programming of State and
Federal financial aids for metropolitan transportation improvements and
services, which fall under State jurisdiction.

e. Developing statewide strategies and guidance for the preparation and
scoping of the metropolitan area transportation system plan, improvement
program and Planning Work Program to address Federal and State
planning requirements and goals.

f. Monitoring the MPQ’s transportation planning process to ensure
compatibility with State and USDOT programs and objectives and to
ensure compliance with applicable Federal requirements.

g. Participating in MPO activities to represent the state interests and ensure
awareness and consideration of state transportation plans, programs,
projects and policies in MPO decision-making.

4. The Transit Operator shall be responsible for and shall be the lead agency in
conducting the following transportation planning and programming activities:



. Coordination of short-range (e.g., TIP), mid-range (3-5 year) (e.g., Transit
Development Plan (“TDP”)) and long-range transit planning and programming
with other transportation planning and programming, with cooperation and
technical assistance from the MPO.

. Providing information relative to the proposed programming of Federal, State
and local funds for metropolitan transit system improvements and services
that fall under the Transit Operator’s jurisdiction.

Preparing and submitting applications for State and Federal mass
transportation capital and operating assistance grants and administering
approved grants.

. Conducting preliminary engineering and final design studies relating to mass
transportation capital facilities, including, but not limited to, transit stations,
shelters, bus stop signs, garages, maintenance buildings, operator buildings
and rolling stock.

. Conducting detailed operational planning necessary to establish or modify
transit routes, schedules, fares, stop locations, transfer points, vehicle
assignments and other operating procedures in accord with the proposals
contained in the TDP.

Preparing and updating paratransit service plans in conformance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

. Conducting transit marketing planning, including, but not limited to, the
conduct of market surveys, the design of user information materials and the
development of transit promotion programs.

. Conducting transit management planning, including but not limited to,
activities related to personnel procedures and training programs,
maintenance policies, fare collection and handling procedures and
accounting practices.

Collecting data to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5335.

Collecting data to meet the requirements of Wis. Admin. Code Trans
Chapters 3, 4 and 8.

. Actively participating in MPO activities to represent the transit interests and
ensure awareness and consideration of transit transportation plans,
programs, projects and policies in MPO decision-making.



B. Responsibilities for Unified Planning Work Program Development — 23
C.F.R. 8 450.308 & Part 420
1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO Responsibility:

a. Formulating and annually approving the Unified Planning Work Program,
which shall identify all transportation-related planning activities to be
funded with state and federal financial aids and technical assistance in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the time schedule
adopted by WisDOT.

b. Providing WisDOT with the Unified Planning Work Program and a
resolution concerning their adoption, endorsement or amendment.

c. Providing WisDOT with an annual self-certification that the MPQO’s
transportation planning process conforms to all applicable Federal
requirements pursuant to 23 C.F.R. Part 450.

2. WisDOT Responsibility:

a. Informing the MPO relative to the availability, or anticipated availability, of
State and Federal financial aids and technical assistance for metropolitan
transportation planning activities; making all metropolitan planning funds
authorized by 23 U.S.C. § 104(f) and 49 U.S.C. 8§ 5305(d) available to the
MPOs in accordance with a formula developed by WisDOT, in consultation
with the MPOs, and approved by USDOT.

b. Developing statewide strategies and guidance for the preparation and
scoping of the Unified Planning Work Program to address Federal and State
planning requirements and goals.

3. Valley Transit Responsibility:

a. Working in coordination with the MPO regarding the Unified Planning

Work Program deliverables and tasks.

C. Responsibilities for Title VI Program — Title VI Civil Rights Act; 23 U.S.C. §
324; Age Discrimination Act; Sec. 504 Rehabilitation Act; Americans with
Disabilities Act
1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO Responsibility:

a. Maintaining a current Title VI Program as required by Federal Transit
Administration’s Title VI Circular 4702.1B in addition to the following:

I. Complying with American Disabilities Act of 1990 plan
certification procedures as required in 49 C.F.R. § 37.139.

ii. Complete an annual report denoting any Title VI Investigations,
Complaints and Lawsuits or reporting there had been none within
the preceding year.

iii. Reporting Title VI activities annually within the Unified Planning
Work Program.

iv. Updating the Title VI Program with approval by the MPQO’s Policy
Board on a three-year cycle.
2. Valley Transit Responsibility:
a. Maintaining a current Title VI Program as required by Federal Transit
Administration’s Title VI Circular 4702.1B, Chapters 1l and IV and



submitting an updated Title VI Program to FTA every three (3) years.

D. Responsibilities for Performance Based Planning and Decision Making — 23
U.S.C. § 134; 23 C.F.R. § 450.306; 23 C.F.R. § 450.314; 23 C.F.R. § 450.324; 23
C.F.R. 8 450.326 and 23 C.F.R. § 450.340
1. ECWRPC and the MPO, along with the Transit Operator and WisDOT will be

cooperatively establishing all federally required performance targets, sharing
performance data and preparing system performance reports (based on FHWA
and FTA performance measure final rules publications), and collecting data for
state asset management plan per applicable federal regulations.

2. The MPO will develop and periodically issue a summary report identifying
adopted performance measures, their baseline when they were adopted, how
the measures were incorporated into the project selection and the progress to
date per the federal regulations.

E. Responsibilities for Congestion Management Process (CMP) — 23 C.F.R. §
450.322
1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO Responsibility:

a. Ensuring opportunities for the early and continuing involvement of the MPO,
Transit Operator, WisDOT, local governmental units and general public in
the review and evaluation of the deficiency network and the draft CMP.

b. Providing WisDOT with a CMP and programs and all resolutions concerning
their adoption, endorsement or amendment that conforms to all applicable
federal requirements.

2. WisDOT Responsibility:

a. Developing strategies and guidance for the preparation and scoping of the

CMP to address Federal and State planning requirements and goals.
3. Valley Transit Responsibility:

a. Working in coordination with the MPO and partner organizations to ensure

there is consistency between the CMP and the TDP.

F. Responsibilities for Metropolitan Transportation Plan — 49 U.S.C. § 5303
and 23 U.S.C. § 134; 23 C.F.R. § 450.324
1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO Responsibility:

a. Formulating, adopting, and periodically reviewing, updating and amending
a Metropolitan Transportation Plan for the Metropolitan Planning Area,
which shall conform to all applicable Federal requirements.

b. Developing and implementing a Metropolitan Transportation Plan in
accordance with the federal regulations.

c. Providing WisDOT with copies of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and
a resolution concerning their adoption, endorsement or amendment.

d. Working with the WisDOT and Transit Operators in the preparation of a
financial plan for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan including the
cooperative development of estimates of transportation system costs and
funding revenues to support implementation of the plan.

2. WisDOT Responsibility:



Informing the MPO relative to Federal or State statutes, policies, regulations
and guidelines, which bare upon metropolitan transportation planning and
programming activities and contractual arrangements.

Coordinating, reviewing and commenting on MPQO’s Metropolitan
Transportation Plan, in a timely manner, for use as a guide in statewide
planning and programming activities.

Developing statewide strategies and guidance for the preparation and
scoping of the metropolitan area transportation system plan, to address
Federal and State planning requirements and goals. Developing the
statewide long-range transportation plan in cooperation with the MPO,
pursuant to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. § 135.

Working with the MPO and Transit Operators in the preparation of a
financial plan for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, including the
cooperative development of estimates of transportation system costs and
funding revenues to support implementation of the plan.

3. Valley Transit Responsibility:

a.

Working with the MPO and WisDOT in the preparation of a financial plan
for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, including the cooperative
development of estimates of transportation system costs and funding
revenues to support implementation of the plan.

Endorsing the MPO’s Metropolitan Transportation Plan in a timely manner,
for use as a guide in local transit planning and programming activities.

G. Responsibilities for Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) — 23 U.S.C.
§ 134; 23 C.F.R. § 450.326
1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO Responsibility:

a.

b.

Formulating and approving a short-range TIP for the Metropolitan Planning
Area which shall cover a period of not less than four (4) years, must have
four (4) years of projects and may include projects outside the Planning
Area for information only. The TIP will provide a notice to the public that the
public participation process used for its development meets the public
participation requirements for the program of projects prepared by transit
operators under 49 U.S.C. § 5307.

Providing WisDOT with copies of MPO TIP and a resolution concerning their
adoption, endorsement or amendment.

2. WisDOT Responsibility:

a.

C.

Informing the MPO relative to the availability, or anticipated availability, of
State and Federal financial aids and technical assistance for metropolitan
transportation planning activities; making all metropolitan planning funds
authorized by 23 U.S.C. § 104(f) and 49 U.S.C. 8§ 5305(d) available to the
MPOs in accordance with a formula developed by WisDOT, in
consultation with the MPOs, and approved by USDOT.

Providing information relative to the availability, or anticipated availability,
of State and Federal financial aids for metropolitan transportation
improvements and services that fall under local programming jurisdiction.
Approving or denying the MPO TIP as such authority was delegated to



WisDOT by the Governor of Wisconsin. WisDOT will not unreasonably
withhold approval.

d. Developing the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) in
cooperation with the MPO, pursuant to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. § 135.

e. Including the MPO TIP without change in the STIP, directly or by reference,
after approval of the TIP by the MPO and the Governor.

f. Working with the MPO and Transit Operators in the preparation of a
financial plan for the TIP, including the cooperative development of
estimates of transportation system costs and funding revenues to support
implementation of the program.

3. Valley Transit Responsibility:

a. Working with the MPO and WisDOT in the preparation of a financial plan
for the TIP, including the cooperative development of estimates of
transportation system costs and funding revenues to support
implementation of the plan and program.

H. Responsibilities for Annual Listing of Obligated Projects — 23 C.F.R. §
450.334 and 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53
1. The MPO will work cooperatively with WisDOT and Transit Operator in the
preparation of an annual listing of obligated transportation projects funded
under 23 C.F.R. § 450.334 and 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53.

Responsibilities for Transit Development Plan (TDP)

1. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO and Valley Transit will prepare and update a
mid-range (3-5 year) TDP in cooperation with the Transit Operator. This plan
shall include, but not be limited to, transit system policies and service
demands, transit service reductions and extensions, transit fares and transit
system capital needs.

Article 3: Scope of Work

A. The cooperative metropolitan transportation planning process shall be carried out
in accordance with a Unified Planning Work Program approved by ECWRPC, the
MPO, WisDOT and USDOT, in consultation with appropriate transportation
providers have entered into the Unified Planning Work Program, including budget
and cost allocation. The Unified Planning Work Program will be reviewed,
approved and replaced annually. The original and all approved subsequent
Unified Planning Work Programs during the terms of this Agreement shall be
made part of this Agreement, which shall constitute the scope of work to be
performed under this Agreement.

B. The Unified Planning Work Program shall set forth a description of the specific
metropolitan transportation planning activities and products to be completed each
calendar year, the corresponding staff and budgetary requirements, and the
allocation of the total costs between the participating agencies. Responsibility for



the following planning activities shall be identified in the Unified Planning Work
Program, where applicable:

1. Preparing technical and other reports to assure documentation of the
development, refinement and reappraisal of the transportation plan; and

2. Conducting detailed corridor or subarea studies to evaluate major
transportation investment alternatives and their social, economic and
environmental impacts pursuant to 23 C.F.R. Part 450.

C. Upon adoption of the Unified Planning Work Program by the MPO and approval
by WisDOT and by USDOT funding agencies, WisDOT shall review and either
approve or deny the MPO to proceed with the Unified Planning Work Program. If
approved, WisDOT shall authorize the MPO to proceed with the Unified Planning
Work Program in writing and in accordance with the terms and conditions of such
approval. WisDOT shall not unreasonably withhold approval.

D. The Unified Planning Work Program may be amended during the course of the
year upon written request of the MPO subject to (1) the written concurrence of
WisDOT and USDOT funding agencies and (2) the availability of funding, if
applicable.

E. The cooperative metropolitan transportation planning process to be conducted
under this Agreement and governed by the provisions of 23 C.F.R. Part 450 shall
encompass the Metropolitan Planning Area, as determined by agreement
between the Governor and MPO.

Article 4: Organization and Administration

A. The governing body of the MPO shall appoint and maintain such policy, citizen and/or
technical advisory committees as deemed appropriate to effectively carry out the
comprehensive metropolitan transportation planning process under this Agreement.
WisDOT and the Transit Operator shall be represented on such policy and technical
advisory committees.

B. MPO may enter into such institutional arrangements, service contracts or agency
agreements as it deems necessary to carry out the scope of work under this
Agreement with the understanding that the MPO shall remain accountable for
completion of planning products in accordance with the Unified Planning Work
Program. All such contracts, subcontracts, agreements or other written
understandings for services shall conform to the appropriate provisions of 2 C.F.R.
Part 200 as supplemented by 23 C.F.R. § 420.119 issued by the FHWA, FTA Circular
4220.1G and any changes or revisions thereto and other applicable guidance the FTA,
FHWA or USDOT may issue.

C. When consultants are to be employed in accomplishing work under this Agreement,

10



all parties providing funding or technical support for such work shall have the right to
review and advise on basic study methods and procedures and to review and approve
subcontracts.

. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of WisDOT’s sovereign
immunity consistent with Wisconsin State law.

Article 5: Inspection of Work

. WisDOT and USDOT shall, at all times during the effective period of this Agreement,
be accorded proper facilities for inspection of the metropolitan transportation
planning work activities and shall, in accordance with Article 11, have access to all
data, information, records and documents pertaining to the work under this
Agreement.

Article 6: Work Product

. WisDOT, the MPO and the Transit Operator shall give each other and applicable
USDOT agencies adequate opportunity to review and comment on their respective
reports produced under this Agreement prior to publication of the final report.

. All reports and documents published by all parties under this Agreement shall give
credit to all other parties and to participating USDOT agencies and include appropriate
disclaimer statements regarding representation of USDOT views or policies.

. The Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, ECWRPC, Valley Transit, Valley Transit, WisDOT
and USDOT shall each have the royalty-free nonexclusive and irrevocable right to
reproduce, publish, distribute or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the
work produced under this Agreement for government purposes.

Article 7: Prohibited Interest

. No member, officer or employee of the MPO or any state or local public body during
his or her tenure or for one year thereafter may have or acquire any interest
whatsoever, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or proceeds thereof or any benefit
arising therefrom.

. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America may have
or acquire any interest whatsoever, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or proceeds
thereof or any benefit arising therefrom.

Article 8: Funding and Payment

. Funding levels and financial responsibilities for the continuing metropolitan
transportation planning process shall be negotiated annually in conjunction with the

11



preparation, review and approval of the Planning Work Program, and shall consider
such factors as the availability of federal planning monies and state and local matching
funds, statewide allocation formulas developed in cooperation with MPOs and the
relative benefits to participating agencies.

. Upon adoption of the Planning Work Program by the MPO and approval by WisDOT
and by USDOT funding agencies, the Planning Work Program shall be deemed to
constitute a part of this Agreement with respect to the scope of work and funding
arrangements. Specific terms or conditions governing the financial aspects of the
Planning Work Program will be set forth in WisDOT’s annual authorization letter.

. All costs incurred during the progress of the metropolitan transportation planning work
activities under this Agreement shall be shared by the MPO and the other participating
agencies on the basis of the cost allocation schedule set forth in the approved
Planning Work Program.

. WisDOT’s share of program costs, together with any USDOT share, which is
administered by WisDOT, will be paid to the MPO following the receipt of a properly
executed invoice, and a detailed status of expenditures report per WisDOT Unified
Planning Work Program Handbook.

. Progress reports containing a narrative and financial account of the work
accomplished to date shall be furnished by ECWRPC, the MPO to WisDOT. These
reports shall be due thirty (30) days after the end of the first, second and third quarters
of each calendar year, and sixty (60) days after the end of the agreement.

. WisDOT may withhold or delay approval of invoices if the MPO fails to submit progress
reports or scheduled products in a timely and satisfactory manner. WisDOT shall
provide reimbursement to the MPO within fifteen (15) business days upon receipt of
a complete progress report so as to comply with federal planning requirements for the
timely payment for all submitted and approved progress reports, finished products and
invoices.

Article 9: Cost Principles

. Allowable Costs. Actual costs incurred by MPO under this Agreement shall be eligible
for reimbursement provided the costs are:

1. Verifiable from the MPQO’s records;

2. Not included as match funds as prescribed by federal law or regulation for any
other federally assisted program;

3. Necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient accomplishment of the
approved Planning Work Program;

4. In conformance with the standards for allowability of costs set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part

12



200 Subpart E and with applicable guidelines, regulations, or federal Agreement
provisions issued by FHWA or FTA;

5. Not paid by the federal government under another assistance agreement unless
authorized to be used as match funds under the other federal agreement and the
laws and regulations governing such agreement;

6. Provided for in the approved Planning Work Program; and

7. No contributions where costs are not incurred, such as volunteer services or
donated property, may be accepted as the non-federal share.

. Indirect Costs. MPO costs charged on an indirect basis shall be supported by an
indirect cost allocation plan and indirect cost rate proposal. Such plans shall be
submitted with certification to WisDOT and the host agency’s cognizant federal
agency for approval prior to recovering any indirect costs included under this
Agreement.

Article 10: Property Utilization and Management

The MPO shall comply with the property management standards as set forth in 2
C.F.R. 88 200.310-200.316.

Article 11: Records and Audits

. The MPO shall, for the program of continuing, comprehensive transportation planning
and programming activities, maintain an accounting system that adequately accounts
for all funds provided for, accruing to or otherwise received from the federal, state and
local units of government, or any other quasi-public or private source under this
Agreement.

. All eligible costs, including paid services and expenses contributed by the MPO, shall
be charged to the approved Planning Work Program by the MPO and shall be
supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts or vouchers
evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges. All accounting
records and other evidence pertaining to the costs incurred by the MPO under this
Agreement shall be maintained by the MPO and shall be clearly identified and readily
accessible. WisDOT and USDOT shall have authority to audit, review, examine, copy
and transcribe any pertinent data, information, records or documents relating to this
Agreement at any reasonable time. The MPO shall retain all records and documents
applicable to this Agreement for a period of not less than three (3) years after final
payment is made to WisDOT by the federal funding agencies.

. The MPO shall have a single, organization-wide financial and compliance audit

performed by a qualified, independent auditor if required to do so under federal laws
and regulations. (See 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Subpart F Audit Requirements.) This audit

13



shall be performed in accordance with 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and state single,
organization-wide audit guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration. A copy of the audit shall be furnished to WisDOT.

Article 12 Certifications and Compliance

A. Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, ECWRPC, WisDOT and Valley Transit Joint Certifications

Appleton (Fox Cities) MPO, ECWRPC, WisDOT and Valley Transit hereby certify that the
cooperative metropolitan transportation planning process being carried out is being
conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements of:

1.

2.

9.

23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 5303 regarding metropolitan transportation
planning;

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1) and
49 CFR Part 21;

49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed,
national origin, sex, or age in employment or business opportunity;

Section 1101(b) of the FAST Act (Pub. L. 114-94) and 49 CFR Part 26
regarding the involvement of disadvantaged business enterprises in DOT-funded
projects;

The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.
12101 et seq.) and 49 CFR Parts 27, 37, and 38;

The Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and applicable
regulations for air quality conformity (if applicable);

7. 31 U.S.C. 1352 and 49 C.F.R. Part 20, regarding lobbying;
8.

The provisions of 49 U.S.C. 5323(l) and 23 CFR Part 450, Subpart C, regarding
the development and approval of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP);
Executive Order 12898 on Environmental Justice;

10.Executive Order 13166 on Limited English Proficiency;
11. Applicable provisions of other Federal statutes and regulations applicable to the

metropolitan planning process.

This certification affirms that the signatory agencies have cooperatively developed and
agreed upon a unified planning process and shared responsibilities for carrying out a
continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning process, including
development of the TIP and Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), in accordance with
federal regulations.

Article 13: Effective Date and Duration of Agreement

A. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by WisDOT, the MPO and the
Transit Operator and shall remain in force until terminated under provisions of Articles
14 and 15, or until superseded by a new agreement.

14



A

. This Agreement may be amended from time-to-time as facts or circumstances warrant

or as may be required by federal and/or state laws, administrative regulations,
departmental orders or guidelines having the full force and effect of law.

. This Agreement supersedes any previous cooperative agreement for metropolitan

transportation planning.
Article 14: General Provisions

Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the statutes
and laws of the United States of America and the State of Wisconsin.

. Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with those documents referred to herein

contain the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any and all prior
Cooperative Agreement for Continuing Transportation Planning agreements and draft
agreements, or oral understandings between the parties.

. The WisDOT may cancel this Agreement in whole or in part, and without penalty due

to non-appropriation of funds or for failure of the MPO and Transit Operators to comply
with terms, conditions, and specifications of this Agreement by notice required in
Article 15.

. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application of this Agreement is

held invalid, the enforceability of all other provisions shall not be impaired.

Article 15: Termination Of Agreement

WisDOT, ECWRPC, the MPO or the Transit Operator may terminate this Agreement
by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such termination to the other parties. In the
event of termination, the MPO will be entitled to receive just and equitable
compensation for any satisfactory work completed under this Agreement to the
effective date of such termination.

Article 16: Execution in Counterparts

. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which so executed shall

be deemed to be an original.

15



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto caused this Agreement to be executed
by their proper officers and representatives.

APPLETON (FOX CITIES) METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

By Date
Austin Hammond, Chair

EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

By Date
Alice Connors, Chair

STATE OF WISCONSIN, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By Date
Kristina Boardman, Secretary of Transportation

CITY OF APPLETON - TRANSIT OPERATOR (VALLEY TRANSIT SYSTEM)

By Date
Jake Woodford, City of Appleton Mayor

16



City of Appleton
VALLEY TRANSIT INCOME STATEMENT

For Six Months Ending June 30, 2025

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2025 2025
June Year June YTD Amended % of Total
Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget
REVENUES
Bus Fare Revenue 63,941 42,999 274,989 326,509 740,000 37.16%
Paratransit Fare Revenue 29,826 28,307 182,643 204,057 557,410 32.77%
Total Fare Revenue 93,767 71,306 457,631 530,566 1,297,410 35.27%
Other Charges for Service 3,880 2,685 18,105 24,384 65,000 27.85%
Other Revenues 605 - 9,879 8,983 8,000 123.49%
TOTAL REVENUES 98,253 73,991 485,615 563,933 1,370,410 35.44%
EXPENSES BY LINE ITEM
Regular Salaries & Labor pool alloc 212,242 199,687 1,200,129 1,375,877 3,586,732 33.46%
Overtime 30,486 67,473 179,228 328,622 77,358  231.69%
Incentive Pay - - - 1,480 - 0.00%
Other Compensation - - 1,639 1,832 - -
Fringes 85,043 85,961 464,130 511,618 1,311,426 35.39%
Unemployment Compensation - - 5,424 (38,887) - -
Salaries & Fringe Benefits 327,770 353,121 1,850,551 2,180,542 4,975,516 37.19%
Training & Conferences (320) 1,466 6,590 13,993 25,000 26.36%
Employee Recruitment 6,855 280 31,784 2,790 7,280 436.60%
Office Supplies & Parking Permits 599 453 2,047 3,698 5,400 37.90%
Subscriptions 54 43 540 485 1,413 38.21%
Memberships & Licenses - 5,050 20,107 14,280 15,970  125.91%
Postage & Freight - 706 676 1,610 3,700 18.26%
Awards & Recognition - - 528 943 930 56.76%
Food & Provisions - - 48 - 1,240 3.90%
Insurance - 11,468 185,333 262,103 314,905 53.74%
Insurance dividend & return of surplus - - (16,094) (16,426) - -
Depreciation Expense 126,812 118,656 760,872 711,937 1,521,743 50.00%
Administrative Expenses 134,000 138,122 992,431 995,413 1,897,581 52.30%
Landscape Supplies 490 470 490 470 1,500 32.67%
Shop Supplies, Tools & Misc 47 1,826 17,135 23,163 55,450 30.90%
Printing & Reproduction 1,877 2,973 5,713 8,049 29,470 19.39%
Uniforms 148 1,159 4,780 3,135 9,290 51.45%
Gas Purchases 16,557 34,933 158,502 217,800 571,500 27.73%
Safety Supplies - 95 715 860 1,500 47.70%
Vehicle & Equipment Parts 48,120 26,697 127,932 121,935 322,300 39.69%
Miscellaneous Equipment 603 921 27,686 10,817 25,100 110.30%
Signs - - 1,310 2,332 12,000 10.91%
Supplies & Materials 67,842 69,074 344,263 388,561 1,028,110 33.49%
Accounting/Audit - - - - 15,000 0.00%
Bank Services 244 248 735 1,372 6,680 11.00%
Consulting Services - - - - 40,000 0.00%
Solid Waste/Recycling - 369 1,884 2,214 6,161 30.58%
Contractor Fees 255,793 185,975 2,626,300 1,093,603 4,008,877 65.51%
Advertising 7,000 7,600 47,590 48,583 50,309 94.60%
Health Services 1,011 1,447 5,375 6,313 9,200 58.42%
Snow Removal Services - - 54,289 38,430 56,008 96.93%
Laundry Services - 649 2,213 4,559 15,340 14.42%
Other Contracts/Obligations 1,204 154 21,522 16,100 100,190 21.48%
Purchased Services 265,251 196,442 2,759,907 1,211,174 4,307,765 64.07%
Electric 4,886 - 28,092 23,510 58,434 48.08%
Gas 360 - 16,578 12,039 24,638 67.29%
Water - 1,922 1,796 4,572 7,850 22.88%
Sewer - 1,118 988 2,653 4,763 20.73%
Stormwater - 2,020 3,995 5,243 10,000 39.95%
Telephone - 1,415 8,468 8,750 29,156 29.04%
Utilities 5,246 6,475 59,916 56,767 134,841 44.43%

50% of Budget Year Completed

Page 1



City of Appleton
VALLEY TRANSIT INCOME STATEMENT
For Six Months Ending June 30, 2025

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2025 2025
June Year June YTD Amended % of Total
Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget

Building/Grounds Repair & Maintenance 2,905 - 4,038 425 - 0.00%
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 6,157 - 11,099 15,874 10,050 110.44%
Equipment Repair & Maintenance 5,298 2,784 6,972 9,204 9,650 72.25%
Facilities Charges & Materials - - 28,897 42,909 137,933 20.95%
Software Support 32,569 31,296 171,956 129,497 170,430  100.90%
Repairs & Maintenance 46,929 34,080 222,961 197,909 328,063 67.96%
Total Operating Expenses 847,039 797,314 6,230,029 5,030,366 12,671,876 49.16%

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (748,786)  (723,323) (5,744,414) (4,466,433) (11,301,466)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Federal Support - - - 2,102,530 3,560,391 0.00%
State Support - - - - 3,082,885 0.00%
Appleton Support 319,965 331,561 1,919,790 1,989,366 724,810 264.87%
Other Local Support 232,302 229,804 2,280,023 2,083,539 1,899,499  120.03%
Investment Income - 13 - 16,593 12,500 0.00%
Donations - - - 21,057 63,386 0.00%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE 552,267 561,378 4,199,813 6,213,085 9,343,471 44.95%
Land 150,000 - 150,000 - - 0.00%
Buildings 21,554 741,670 40,985 2,993,345 7,500,000 0.55%
Machinery & Equipment - - 93,376 - - 0.00%
Furniture & Fixtures - - 199,173 - - 0.00%
Vehicles - - - - 50,000 0.00%
Capital Expenditures 171,554 741,670 483,534 2,993,345 7,550,000 6.40%

NET INCOME (LOSS) (368,073)  (903,615) (2,028,135) (1,246,693) (9,507,995)

50% of Budget Year Completed

Page 2



City of Appleton
VALLEY TRANSIT INCOME STATEMENT
For Six Months Ending June 30, 2025

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2025 2025
June Year June YTD Amended % of Total
Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget
PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE

VTII - Disabled (58075000.640800) 94,758 73,863 611,949 509,992 2,550,000 24.00%
VTII - Elderly (1806) 6,375 3,481 35,777 23,455 76,500 46.77%
PT - Optional (Sunday) (1807) 485 214 2,550 1,606 12,750  20.00%
Outagamie County Demand Response Rural (1809) 29,945 25,479 197,901 189,124 462,600 42.78%
Neenah Dial - A - Ride (1813) 4,234 3,085 27,781 20,938 120,705  23.02%
Calumet County Van Service (1818) 6,055 - 31,898 16,110 37,620 84.79%
Connector (1822) 78,120 22,826 473,436 177,713 476,352  99.39%
Downtown Trolley (1821) 11,284 10,447 11,284 20,575 40,800 27.66%
Total Purchased Transportation 231,255 139,395 1,392,575 959,513 3,777,327  36.87%

50% of Budget Year Completed

Page 3



FCTC Monthly Fixed Route Ridership - June 2025

Total Monthly Total YTD
Passengers Passengers
41,682 283,656
N -13% 48,064 N -19% 349,070
change prev. year change prev. year

@ ValleyTransit

Monthly Fare Group Trend
Fare Group Desc Prior Year Current % Change
Passes & Tickets 22,551 19,525 -13.4%
Cash 8,767 7,337 -16.3%
Transfers 7,588 6,980 -8.0%
AASD 3,443 3,194 -7.2%
FVTC 3,458 2,261 -34.6%
Free 1,691 1,899 12.3%
Lawrence University 574 486 -16.3%

*Note: Ridership decrease due to a major service modification in July 2024 when Monday - Friday evening and Saturday afternoon & evening bus service was

transitioned to VT Connector service.

Ridership by Route

10k

8k

6k

4k

2kI I|‘ |‘
|III_|| I_ IIIlI
-~ &4 ® & » YW ®w® © e~ «&§& ;v v oo © © = & = @@©
o © © o © o oo © = - - = =~ & ® ®o® o < o

-

TROLLEY

Prior Year m Current Year

Monthly Ridership Trend by Year

60k \/

50k
40k
30k
20k

10k

January February March April May

July August September  October November December

Agency FY: ® 2023¢ 2024 2025



FCTC Monthly Demand Response Ridership - June 2025

5k

4k

3k

2k

8k

6k

4k

2k

Total Monthly
Passengers

7,634

116%
change

-
w
w

CC-Van Svs

January

6,575
prev. year

February

2,180

1,048

CONNECTOR

March

April

Monthly Ridership Trend by Year

May June July August

September

ValleyTransit

CONNECTING THE FOX CITIES

L

Total YTD . .
Passengers Monthly Ridership by Program Trend
Reporting Route Prior Year Current Year % Change
47 677 VTII-ADA 4,288 3,871 -9.72%
’
ey 45,264 CONNECTOR 1,048 2,180 108.02%
change prev. year OC-Rural 678 762 12.39%
CC-Van Svs 133 320 140.60%
VTIl-Sr 201 254 26.37%
NWDAR 215 228 6.05%
VTII-Sun 12 19 58.33%
Monthly Ridership by Program
4,288
3,871
215 228 201 254
[ | [ | 1219

[+ 4 © < - =

3 5 g 2 3

: : : : :

z 8 g >

Prior Year ® Current Year

/’\\,\

October November December

Agency FY: ©2023 ©2024 e 2025



Quarterly KPI - Fixed Route Service, 2" Quarter 2025

Reliability

On time performance (OTP) is a primary measure of service reliability. A bus is on time if it departs a route's scheduled time point between one minute early and five minutes late. This

graph shows the monthly percentage of stops on time. Road construction, weather, traffic and other operational conditions are all factors that impact system-wide OTP. Formula = (on
time stops/total stops)

On Time Performance

100%
° Target
e 91% >90%
g 90% = == mmm= EEEEEEEEEEEE e
5 85%
5
a 80%
Q
£
=
S 70%
60%
< < < < < < < < < < < < 0 wn n 0 I 0
N o~ N N ] N ~ N N N N N N N N N N N
=] o o =] <] <] =] =] =] =] =] =] =] <] =] =] =] o
~ ~ ~ « N ] I 1] ~ « ~ 3 ~ ~ ~ « ~ ~
c E-] = = > 13 = =) a - > o s o = = > c
© Q. ] =] Q o 7] © Q. ]
s & s < s 3 S 2 & <} 2 a s & s < s 3
The goal is to minimize bus repair road calls through preventative maintenance and asset manag it. This graphs shows the average frequency of major system failures. A major
system failure is a road call that requires replacement of a bus in service due to an issue that is a safety hazard or when vehicle movement is restricted or disabled. Formula = (total
miles/# of failures)
Total Miles between Major System Failures
80k
7]
g
=
i 60k 54,399
£
&
& 40k
<
)
é 20k Target
= >7,500
0 5,154
< < < < < < < < < < < < n 0 0 0 0 ]
S S S S e ) 8 e S S ) ) ) S S S 8 S
~ ~ ~ « « « ~ ~ ~ « I « « ~ ~ « I «
c a = = > c = o -9 = > o = o = = > c
< -9 &) S °© ] S )
3 & s < s 3 S 2 & IS 2 a 3 4 s < s 3
Quality

The focus is to provide quality service and respond to feedback in a timely manner. This graph shows the monthly rate of complaints per 100,000 rides. Formula = (complaints/rides)X100,000

Complaints per 100K Passenger Trips

w 15
]
b}
oc
-3 10.25
5 7.80
o Target
8
c <9.3
8 5
=%
£
=]
o
00
0

Jan 2024
Feb 2024
Mar 2024
Apr 2024
May 2024
Jun 2024
Jul 2024
Aug 2024
Sep 2024
Oct 2024
Nov 2024
Dec 2024
Jan 2025
Feb 2025
Mar 2025
Apr 2025
May 2025
Jun 2025 -©


david.vickman
Line

david.vickman
Line

david.vickman
Line

vickmadf
Text Box
Target >90%

vickmadf
Text Box
Target >7,500

vickmadf
Text Box
Target <9.3


Safety

The goal is to provide safe service and minimize the likelihood of all accidents. This graph provides the rate of reportable safety & security events on transit property or involving revenue vehicles
per 100K miles. Reportable events, as defined by the National Transit Database, include: injuries requiring i i

collisions when vehicle is towed away; evacuation; or fatalities. Formula = (events/total miles)X100,000

d di

r | at

away from scene; property damage exceeding $25,000;

Reportable Events per 100K Miles
10

- X I X B

-
0.0 -
< < < < < < < < < n wn n n 7] n
s 0§ § 3 § § § & § 3 & 5§ g & g g g g oo
« « « « « « Q « « « « « « « « « « « <1
c 2 = 3 > c = (=] Q. - > [ c £2 = = > c
] 7] S =3 ) S 3 S @ Q ° @ < (] (] o © 5
] w = < = ] = < 7] o z a ] L = < = ]
Productivity

The goal is to increase ridership and community mobility. This graph shows the monthly ratio of rides to revenue hours. This is an industry dard KPI for
productivity. Formula = (rides/revenue hours)

ing service

Passengers per Revenue Hour

15

10

Jan 2024
Feb 2024
Mar 2024
Apr 2024
May 2024
Jun 2024
Jul 2024
Aug 2024
Sep 2024
Oct 2024
Nov 2024
Dec 2024
Jan 2025
Feb 2025
Mar 2025
Apr 2025
May 2025
Jun 2025


david.vickman
Line

david.vickman
Line

vickmadf
Text Box
Target <1

vickmadf
Text Box
Target >12.6


Quarterly KPI -Demand Response Service, 2"d Quarter 2025 w ValleyTransit

Reliability

CONNECTING THE FOX CITIES

On time performance is a key measure of service reliability. A VTII vehicle is on time if it arrives for pick-up within 30-minute window. The window is 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled pick-up time. This metric shows the monthly percentage of trips on time. Formula = (on time trips/total trips)

On Time Performance

100%
o
9% 959 95% Target
>90%
90% m = = = oo o om om om om oE E oE oE E E E E E O M M M M M M M M M M M BN R M M RN M M M M M M N M M M N M M M M M M M M M M M M W
80%
70%
< < < < < < < < < < < < 0 'Y n 0 Y 0
1) ) S ) e S S 8 S ) S S S ) S ) S S
13 1] X 13 N 3 « « ~ 13 N 3 3] 13 1] I3 N 3]
c r-) = = > c = =) =% - > ) c a = = > c
< =) B S ° 2 < o )
3 & = < s 3 S z & 5] 2 a 3 i s < S 3
Quality
The goal is to provide quality service and respond to feedback in a timely manner. This graph shows the monthly rate of complaints per 10,000 rides. Formula = (complaints/rides)X10,000
Complaints Per 10K Rides
15 = = = = o= oo o o o M W M M M M M M M M M N M M M N M BN M N M M M M M M M M N M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M Mmoo
1.8 Target
<15
10 9.5 8
5
0
< < < < < < < < < < < < 0 0 0 0 I 0
N N N N [} N ~ N N I N N} N N N N o N
=] =] o =} =] =] =] =) o =] =] =} =] o o =} <] =}
N ~ X 1 N 3 I « 13 « N 15 3 ~ N 13 N 13
c E-] = = > 13 = =) a - > © c o = = > c
(] Q © = O =) (1] o (]
s & s < s 3 S 2 & <} 2 a s i s < < 3
Safety
The goal is to provide safe service and minimize the likelihood of all accidents. This graph provides the rate of reportable safety & security events on transit property or involving revenue vehicles
per 100K miles. Reportable events, as defined by the National Transit Database, include: injuries requiring immediate medical attention away from scene; property damage exceeding $25,000;
collisions when vehicle is towed away; evacuation; or fatalities.
Formula = (events/total miles)X100,000
Reportable Events per 100K Miles
10
8
6
4
2
0 0 0.
< < < < < < < < < < < < 10 T 10 0 T 0 Target
8§ § § § § g & g § & § § ¢ g g &8 g § <«
3 13 ~ « ~ ~ < ~ 13 1 I ~ « « I 13 N N
c a = = > c = =) o = > o s r-) = = > c
] [ ) S ° 2 ] o )
3 & s < = 3 S 2 o o 3 a 3 & = < S 3


david.vickman
Line

david.vickman
Line

david.vickman
Line

vickmadf
Text Box
Target >90%

vickmadf
Text Box
Target <15

vickmadf
Text Box
Target <1


Productivity

The goal is to increase community mobility and access. This graph shows the monthly ratio of rides to revenue hours. This is an industry standard for measuring service productivity.
There is no target for this indicator.

Jan 2024

Feb 2024

Mar 2024

Apr 2024

May 2024

Formula = (rides/revenue hours)

Passengers per Revenue Hour

Jun 2024
Jul 2024

Aug 2024
Sep 2024
Oct 2024

Nov 2024

Dec 2024

Jan 2025

Feb 2025

Mar 2025

Apr 2025

May 2025

Jun 2025



	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_MeetingMinutes 24-June-2025
	0003_1_June 2025 Payments
	0004_1_Appleton Coop Agreement Final 11July25
	0005_1_June 2025 Income Statement
	0006_1_FCTC Monthly FR - June 2025
	

	0006_2_FCTC Monthly DR - June 2025
	

	0007_1_Quarterly KPI - FR_QTR2 2025
	

	0007_2_Quarterly KPI - DR_QTR2 2025
	




